Tarleton to Hutchinson

Direct Descendants of Stephen Tarleton
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This is the story of the closest common ancestors to the children of John Joseph Hutchinson and
Anne Janece Donald. This branch of the family got off to a bad beginning with the escapades of
Stephen Tarleton. Because these stories are derived from many sources the names and dates are not
totally consistent but there are multiple sources for each link.



Generation 1
Stephen Tarleton and Susanna Bates

Stephen Tarleton, born 1637 in New Kent, Virginia; died 1687 in St. Peters Parish, New Kent,
Virginia. He was the son of John Tarleton and Ursula Fleming. He married Susanna Bates.
Susanna Bates was born September 30, 1635 in York, Virginia; died in Virginia. She was the
daughter of John Bates and Elizabeth Winston.

Stephen and Susanna are the great’ grandparents of the Hutchinson children through the
Hutchinson line and great!® grandparents through the Donald line. Sisters Judith Tarleton and
Susanna Tarleton married ancestors John Woodson and Charles Fleming.

Stephen Tarleton was the son of John Tarleton (1610-1633) and Ursula Fleming (1610-1680).
Susanna Bates was born September 30, 1635 in Virginia and died there in 1655. She was the
daughter of John Bates (1598-1666) and Elizabeth Winston (1605-1701). There is some
confusion on the birth date of Ursula Fleming that calls into question the identity of Stephen’s
mother. There are inconsistent birth days of children and Susanna’s death in 1655 is in question.

Stephen Tarleton’s name appears in the records of York County, Virginia beginning in 1659. His
occupation was shown as a tobacco appraiser. On April 12, 1660, he was charged by a servant
girl, Mary Gunnell, who deposed that "Stephen Torlington[sic] got her with child and did use her
several times by day and also by night in her master's hall and also in other places." It was
shortly after this case that he removed to New Kent County. In 1663, he patented 394 acres of
land in that county. This tract was located on the north side of the main branch of Blackwater
Creek, and a fork of the Chickahominy Swamp, south of the Pamunkey River. In 1676, he was
active in the "Bacon's Rebellion" with Nathaniel Bacon, and he later renounced this association
in a letter to His Majesty's Commissioners in Virginia pleading for pardon. However, a year
later, in 1677, he was again involved in rebellious activities when he signed "The Blisland Parish
Grievances," a list of complaints about the acts of oppression committed by the crown's agents in
the Virginia Colony. In May, 1682, he was arrested by the Sheriff of York County for inciting
the "Tobacco Riots", during which tobacco plants, crops, and stored stockpiles were destroyed
by the planters rather than sell them to the crown's buyers. This uprising was the last of its kind
until the events which led to the American Revolution.

Children:

1. Judith Tarleton born 1660 in New Kent, Virginia, died 1714 in Henrico, Virginia, married
John “The Merchant” Woodson.

2. Susanna Tarleton, born 1663 in St. Peters Parish, York County, Virginia; died July 10,
1717 in New Kent, Virginia; married Charles Fleming 1680 in New Kent, Virginia; born 10
December1659 in Scotland; died 07 October 1717 in Flemings Park, Henrico County,
Virginia.

3. Elizabeth Tarleton born 1660 St Peters Parish, New Kent, Virginia, died October 7, 1717 in
New Kent, Virginia, married Stephen Hughes.

4. Sarah Tarleton married Jesse John Hughes.



5. Stephen Tarleton born 1661in St. Peters Parish York, Virginia.
6. John Tarleton born in 1664 in Blisland Par, New Kent, Virginia.
7. Charles Tarleton born 1667 in Blisland Par, New Kent, Virginia.

Letter to Honorable Herbert Jeffries, Sir John Berry, and Francis Morrison, his Majesty's
Commissioner's in Virginia:

"The humble petition of Stephen Tarleton of New Kent county most humbly sheweth that your
petitioner as he most penitently and sorrowfully acknowledgeth seduced into the late horrible
Rebellion, and taken yet unlawful oath imposed by the late grand Rebell Nathaniel Bacon, Jr.
and being conscious of his guilt thereof did upon the firste publishing his most sacred Majesty's
gratious and surpassing Act of pardon, to his distressed subjects of this late disloyall Colony lay
hold of the same, and take the oath of allegiance and then was and still is ready to performe those
other due and reasonable conditions which by his Majesty's said pardon he is justly enjoyned to
doe and being by the Honorable Governor's proclamation of the 9th of February last referred to
the determination of your honor your petitioner in all humility beseech the mercy and pardon for
his said crimes, and humbly prayeth yet he may be admitted to the full benefit of his Majesty's
said Act of pardon."

http://trees.ancestry.com/owt/person.aspx?pid=17533220

Generation 2
John “The Merchant” Woodson and Judith Tarleton

John “The Merchant” Woodson, born 1658 in Curles, Henrico, Virginia; died December 5,
1715 in Henrico, Virginia. He was the son of Lt. Col. Robert Woodson and Elizabeth Ferris.
He married Judith Tarleton. Judith Tarleton, born 1660 in New Kent, Virginia; died 1714 in
Henrico, Virginia. She was the daughter of Stephen Tarleton and Susanna Bates.

John Woodson was a Quaker. He lived at Curles in Henrico County, Virginia. He was employed
as a carpenter 1684-1691 and merchant from 1702 onward. On October 21, 1687, Robert
Woodson Sr. (John's father), John Woodson Sr., William Lewis, and Thomas Charles were
granted 470 acres of land in Henrico County in the Parish of Verina and on the north side of
James River, beginning, & continuing standing on the western branch of the Deep Run.

John Woodson was appointed constable in room of, and by nomination of Mr. Charles
Blanchrvile on February 1, 1687.

John Woodson, Sr. Carpenter, of Henrico Parish & Count, (and Judith his wife) to William
Randolph of aforesaid County & Parish, Gent. In consideration of a proportionable part of ye
rights, Survey & other charges in taking up & Patenting 1850 acres upon Chickahominy Swamp
in same Parish & County, conveys to said Randolph, 400 acres, being a part & dividend of above
said tract, beginning at ye side of said Swamp a little above ye house where John Morton now
lives (being a quarter built by and belonging to said Randolph: Judith, wife of John Woodson,
relinquishes right of dower &c. Recorded April 1, 1689.



There are dozens of other land transactions recorded during this time. Most are routine. The most
interesting aspect is that in many cases tobacco was used as a currency.

Will of John Woodson, of Henrico Co.

To son Tarlton Woodson, tract commonly called Neck of Land & Swamp, also about 1000 acres
in Henrico Countyat Dover on North side James River beginning at the upper line of Charles
Fleming & bounded up the River to John Pleasants land near the Mouth of Beaver Dam Creek &
so out into the woods & so on the back lines to come opposite to the Lower line of the said
Fleming thence to the said Flemings Corner Iver(?) & so long his back line & upper line to the
place began.

To son Jacob Woodson, tract of land at Dover lying in Henrico Co., beginning at Samuel Birk's
lower line thence down ye River to the Lower Side of the mouth of Janitoe Creek thence into the
Woods to the head line of that Survey, binding on my old Survey, & then up the back lines up
the River ward till it comes to his Brother Tarlton's corner line thence on that line & the lower
line of Samuel Birk to the place began.

To son John Woodson, tract of land beginning at Jacob's lower line below the mouth of Janitoe
Creek thence down the River Ten pole the mouth of Mill Creek thence on a Strait line to the
house of William Hodges up the hill thence on a strait course into the woods to strike the Back
lines of my first patented Land one hundred and twenty Pole below where the said line Crosses
the mill Creek thence on the back lines, Except 100 acres which I give to Josiah Paine son of
George Paine & Mary Paine to be laid out below Mill Creek & to bind on the said back line to
him the said Josiah Paine. My will is that my son John's Bounds shall continue from the said
Creek upwards on the said Back lines to his Brother Jacob's lower line, thence on that line, to the
River & place began including my Corn Mill & all that part of Sabot Island which lies opposite
to the said tract bounded by a straight line Ten pole below the Island & so crossing the Island To
strike the main River forty pole below the house of John Prier.

To son Robert Woodson, tract of land beginning at his Brother John's lower line at the River
thence down the River 50 Pole below the mouth of Stony Creek thence on a strait line at right
angles from the River 600 yards out then on a strait line to strike my back line fifty pole below
where the said line crosses Stony Creek , then on the said back line to his Brother John's Lower
line near where I have given Josiah Paine a hundred acres so to bind on his Brother John's lower
line so to the River including my Sawmill & appurtenances, & that part of Sabot Island which
reaches from his Brother John's line in the said Island till it comes 50 poles below the mouth of
Stony Creek & from thence a strait line to be run to the South or main River.

To son Josiah, tract of land beginning at his Brother Robert's lower line thence down the river to
the mouth of a Gully below where John Maxfield now dwells thence into the Woods at right
angles from the River to be back line thence on the said line to his Brother Robert's lower line
thence on that line to the place began thence over the little River binding on his Brother Robert's
lower line in Sabot Island to the main South River thence down the said River till it comes
opposite a Gully near where John Maxfield now dwells.

To son Stephen, tract of land beginning at his brother Josiah's lower line thence down the River



to John Huckaby's then out into the Woods at right angles from the River to be back line on that
line to his Brother Josiah's lower line, thence on that line to the place began, also the remainder
of Sabot Island from Josiah's lower line to the lower end of the said Island both land & Island
unto him ye said son Stephen & his heirs forever.

To daughter Judith, tract of Land on James River beginning at her Brother Stephen's lower line
on the River thence down the river half a mile thence into the Woods at right angles from the
River to ye back line of the land Surveyed by William Womack thence on that line till it comes
opposite with her brother Stephen's lower line, thence on that line to the River & place began.
To daughter Elizabeth, tract of land beginning at her sister Judith's lower line thence down the
River half a mile thence at right angles from ye River to the back line of the land Surveyed by
William Womack thence on that line to her Sister's lower line thence on that line to ye River &
place began.

To son Jacob Woodson, tract of land opposite elk Island where Joshua Stephens now or of late
lived containing by Patent 348 acres.

To sons Josiah & Stephen, land at Half Sink on Chickahominy Swamp, Henrico Countyexcept
150 acres to be bounded on the line of John Pirant & the Swamp all the rest my said sons to be
equally divided, Josiah to have the upper part & Stephen the lower part.

To son Tarleton one quarter part of Elk Island.

To son John one quarter part of Elk Island.

To son Robert one quarter part of Elk Island.

To son Jacob the other quarter part of Elk Island, to be laid out opposite to his land where Joshua
Stephens now or of late did dwell.

To son John my young negro Dick.

To son Robert negro Winter.

To son Jacob negro girl Bess & her increase.

To daughter Judith negro girl Judy & her increase.

My negro Old Dick to fall to him of my four sons Tarlton, John, Robert, or Jacob that will give
the most for him & the product to be equally divided among my 8 children.

Executors to confirm to Thomas Harwood 150 acres of land at half sink bounded on Pirant's line
& the Swamp provided he shall pay 3400 pounds of tobacco.

Son Tarlton shall confirm unto my (the testator) Brother Benjamin Woodson the land he (now)
lives on at Chickohominy Swamp.

Son Tarlton shall confirm to John Canon, son of William Canon & Judith his wife, 100 acres up
James River, likewise 100 acres to William Cannon provided he pays to my Executors 710
Courtrey(?) pay, and to confirm to Charles Huddesey 100 acres for which I have received
payment & 100 more if the said Huddesey pays 80 bushels of wheat & brings it to Dover Mill.
Executors to confirm to Edward Lester a dividend of Land up Mill Creek which I formerly
bargained for.

Executors to confirm to Henry Lester 200 acres up Mill Creek provided he pays them 720
currency, also to confirm to Robert Hughes three hundred acres of land being part of five
hundred for which I have Charles Fleming 's bond for the remaining 200 to John Jones of
Manakin Town.



Executors to confirm 100 acres to William Thornell lying between Robert Adams & the line of
Richard Woodson provided he shall pay ?10 ready money.

If any one or more of my children should dye without heirs or before they arrive to the age of 21
years, then his or her or their estate shall be equally divided among the survivors & the heirs of
such if dead as have arrived to the age of 21 years or have had lawful heirs, before they arrive to
that age to be equally divided. Real estate not heretofore given to my executors.

Executors: Sons Tarlton Woodson, John Woodson, Robert Woodson, & Jacob Woodsn.

Dated November 25, 1715.

Witnesses: James Cocke, Arthur A. M. Markham, Edward East (Bertha Newcome), Mathew M.
Dod.

Proved Dec. 5, 1715.

An inventory of the estate of John Woodson, deceased taken and appraised this 23d of April
1716 by us Richard Cocke, Thomas Randolph & John Archer three of the appraisers appointed
by an Order of Henrico Court dated ye 5th day of Dec. 1715, as followeth.

At Dover:

1 iron pott wt. 27, 1 do 52 at 4d ? 1:06:04:

1 pr. pott hooks ? 00:01:00:

1 very old frying pan ? 00:00:04:

1 gall 1 pottle pewter potts ? 00:08:00:

2 Fixt guns ? 02:00:00:

1 Do very ordunary broken stock & lock ? 00:12:06:

61/2t very old Ordinary Pewter ? 00:03:03:

1 copper Kettle wt. 80t att 18c to Bail & Rim included ? 06:03:04:

1 small Virga Saddle 1/2 worn ? 00:16:00:

1 five foot chest wth padd Lock ? 00:02:06:

371/2t drest flax at ? 10:11:03:

73t drest flax ? 01:04:04:

1 old Brass Kettle wtt 14tt bail & all with 2 patches out ? 00:08:00:

1/2t (1/4) Swindled flax ? 00:00:07:

1 very old feather Virgina Linnen Tick 45 ? 01:02:06:

1 very old Rugg 8/4 ? 00:05:06:

Was a merchant. In 1712 wife Judith relinquisher her dower rights to land deed her husband
from his father John, Henrico Co., Virginia.1715, made Will. Issue: Tarelton, John, Robert Jr,
Josiah, Stephen, Jacob, and Judith.

http://awtc.ancestry.com/cgi-bin/igm.cgi?op=GET&db=tayolson1&id=115389

Children of John Woodson and Judith Tarleton are:
1. Steven Woodson
2. Tarleton Woodson, born 1681 in Varina, Henrico, Virginia; died January 1771 in
Chesterfield County, Virginia; married Ursula Fleming; born 1683 in New Kent,
Virginia; died 1760 in Chesterfield, Virginia.
3. Sarah Woodson, born 1691 in Varina, Henrico, Virginia; died 1772 in Virginia; married
Robert Sharpe. Sarah is not mentioned in the will and is listed as a step-daughter in

some accounts.
4. John Woodson, born in 1695 Henrico, Virginai, died May 21, 1754 in Goochland,



Virginia

Robert Woodson, born 1697 in Varina, Henrico, Virginia.
Jacob Woodson, born 1699 in Varina, Henrico, Virginia.
Josiah Woodson, born 1702 in Varina, Henrico, Virginia.
Judith Woodson, born 1706 in Varina, Henrico, Virginia.
Elizabeth Woodson, born 1708 in Varina, Henrico, Virginia.

AR PRI

Charles Fleming and Susanna Tarleton

Charles Fleming, born December 10, 1659 in Scotland; died October 7, 1717 in Flemings Park,
Henrico County, Virginia. He was the son of John Fleming and Mercy Mary Randolph. He
married Susanna Tarleton 1680 in New Kent, Virginia. Susanna Tarleton, born 1663 in St.
Peters Parish, York County, Virginia; died July 10, 1717 in New Kent, Virginia. She was the
daughter of Stephen Tarleton and Susanna Bates.

Colonel Charles Fleming resided at New Kent County, Virginia and in Charles Parish, York
County, Virginia. Susanna Tarleton resided at St. Peters Parish, New Kent County, Virginia. She
died July 10, 1717 in New Kent.

Known children of Charles Fleming and Susanna Tarleton all born in St. Peters, New Kent
County, Virginia are:

1.

Susanna Fleming, born 1680 in St Peters Parish, New Kent, Virginia; died November 15,
1757 in Goochland, Virginia; married John Bates February 10, 1713 in Home Charles
Fleming, Henrico, Virginia; born March 10, 1684 in York County, Virginia; died March 12,
1742 in York County, Virginia.

Sarah Fleming, born 1695 in St Peters, New Kent, Virginia; died 1736 in Fluvanna,
Virginia; married Bowler Cocke; born 1696 in Shirley Plantation, Charles City, Virginia;
died 1771 in Shirley Plantation, Charles City, Virginia.

Elizabeth Fleming born October 23, 1687 in St Peters Parish, New Kent, Virginia, ., died
July 20, 1758 in Amelia, Virginia, married Col. Samuel Jordan. According to Quaker
records, he was married in December 1703 to Elizabeth Fleming, daughter of Charles and
Sussanna Tarleton Fleming of New Kent County. Charles Fleming was the son of Sir
Thomas Fleming and grandson of Lord John Fleming, Earl of Wigton, Scotland. Although
Samuel and Elizabeth were married according to Quaker rites, they later became
Episcopalians.

Ursula Fleming born 1683 in New Kent, Virginia, died 1760 in Chesterfield, Virginia,
married Tarleton Woodson August 3, 1710. Ursula Fleming and Tarleton Woodson are
cousins. Their mothers, Susanna Tarleton and Judith Tarleton are sister, the daughters of
Stephen Tarleton and Susannah Bates.

Grace Fleming, born 1686 in New Kent, Virginia; died February 10, 1711 in Henrico,
Virginia; married George Bates; born November 18, 1677 in St Peters, New Kent, Virginia;
died 1719 in York County, Virginia.

Judith Fleming born November 1689 in Goochland, Virginia, died 1743 in New Kent,
Virginia, married Thomas Randolph.

Tarleton Fleming, born December 12, 1699 in St Peters Parish, New Kent, Virginia; died



December 18, 1750 in Rock Castle, Goochland, Virginia; married (1) Hannah Bates;
married (2) Mary Berkeley 1717 in Virginia.

8. Ann Fleming born 1705 in New Kent, Virginia, died 1778 in Goochland, Virginia, married
Josias Payne, son of George Payne and Mary Woodson, 1732.

9. Caroline Fleming was born in Henrico, Virginia.

Charles Fleming was born perhaps in Glasgow or Cumbernauld, Lanarkshire, Scotland, and
came by 1653 with his parents to America. He and his wife were living October 7, 1717; but he
was dead by December 1720, when his executor to his will, John Fleming, was mentioned. His
will is gone. He married about 1684, Susanna Tarleton. She was the daughter of Stephen
Tarleton who died in 1687. He resided in New Kent County, just south of York River. He was a
merchant and planter, owning slaves and extensive tracts of land in New Kent, King William,
Henrico and what is now Goochland Counties. The family were Quakers.

http://www.samsawadee.com/sams-place/fleming.html

Son Tarleton Fleming married his second cousin Hannah Bates before he married Mary
Berkeley. Tarleton and Hannah have the same great grand parents John Bates and Elizabeth
Winston.

Generation 3

Robert Sharpe, born 1686 in Varina Parish, Henrico, Virginia; died 1774 in Varina Parish,
Henrico, Virginia. He was the son of Robert Sharpe and Katherine Hatcher. He married
Sarah Woodson. Sarah Woodson, born 1691 in Varina, Henrico, Virginia; died 1772 in
Virginia. She was the daughter of John The Merchant Woodson and Judith Tarleton.
Tarleton Fleming married his second cousin Hannah Bates before he married Mary Berkeley.
Tarleton and Hannah have the same great grand parents John Bates and Elizabeth Winston.

Notes for Robert Sharpe:
Magazine of Virginia Genealogy article, Vol. 30 No. 3, August 1992, by Benjamin T. Sharp.

In addition to the seven married daughters, the following are mentioned in Robert Sharpe's will:
Son: Robert Sharpe

Grandson: Langston Sharpe

Son: William Sharp (his children)

Grandson: Julius Sharpe

Daughter-in-Law: Elizabeth Sharpe

Grandsons: William, Isaac and Julius Sharpe

Granddaughters: Nancy and Ursula Sharpe

Robert Sharp undoubtedly had other children not mentioned in the will, either because they had
pre-deceased him, or because he had already given them their portion, or for some other reason.
An article from the 30 March 1769 "Virginia Gazette" mentions that in that year Robert Sharp
was 83 years old and had "156 descendants all now alive."



Other possible children of Robert Sharp, Sr. These children died before Robert Sharp, Sr.'s death
and were not mentioned in his will.

Mary, of New Kent Co., Virginia, married George Martin.

Isaac, died before 1756.

John, died Albemarle County after 1759.

Josiah, died before June 1751.

http://awtc.ancestry.com/cgi-bin/igm.cgi?op=GET&db=markfreemn&id=1552648

Children of Robert Sharpe and Sarah Woodson are:
1. William Sharp, born 1710 in Henrico, Virginia; died April 1768 in Dale Parish, Henrico,
Virginia; married Martha.
Susannah Sharpe, born 1725; died 1774 in Virginia.
Robert Sharp, born 1710 in Goochland, Virginia; died 1801.
Catherine Sharpe, born 1751 in Goochland, Virginia.
John Sharpe, died 1774
Josiah Sharpe, died June 1751.
Isaac Sharpe, died 1774.
Agnes Sharpe
. Lucy Sharpe
10. Sarah Sharpe
11. Elizabeth Sharpe
12. Ursula Sharpe, born 1728 in Henrico, Virginia; died 1772 in Augusta, Virginia.

o R N

Tarleton Fleming and Mary Berkeley

Tarleton Fleming, born December 12, 1699 in St Peters Parish, New Kent, Virginia; died
December 18, 1750 in Rock Castle, Goochland, Virginia, .. He was the son of Charles Fleming
and Susanna Tarleton. He married Mary Berkeley 1717 in Virginia. Mary Berkeley, born
1700. She was the daughter of Edmund Berkeley and Judith Randolph.

Notes for Tarleton Fleming:
Tarleton Fleming’s daughter is Ann Fleming born 1706 in Jamestown, James, Virginia, died
1796 in Amherst, Virginia, married George Penn. Tarleton Fleming married his second cousin
Hannah Bates before he married Mary Berkeley. Tarleton and Hannah have the same great grand
parents John Bates and Elizabeth Winston.

http://wc.rootsweb.ancestry.com/cgi-bin/igm.cgi?op=AHN&db=2116&id=101579

http://books.google.com/books?id=tyQSAAAAYAAJ&pg=PA385&Ipg=PA385&dqg=tarleton+fl
eming+mary-+berkeley&source=bl&ots=NPZ5 2wzlR&sig=055t0jEDY v4ksp0Q25dqaaT14z0&
hl=en&ei=y9qY TYmICpCJOQHPItzOCw&sa=X&oi=book_result&ct=result&resnum=1&sqi=2
&ved=0CBcQ6AEwAA#v=onepage&q=tarleton%20fleming%20mary%?20berkeley&f=false

http://familytreemaker.genealogy.com/users/h/e/e/Letty-F-Heeren/WEBSITE-0001/UHP-
0180.html



Child of Tarleton Fleming and Mary Berkeley is:
1. Ann Fleming, born 1706 in Jamestown, James, Virginia; died 1794 in Amherst, Virginia;
married George Penn 1734 in Caroline, Virginia.

Generation 4

William Sharp, born 1710 in Henrico, Virginia; died April 1768 in Dale Parish, Henrico,
Virginia. He was the son of Robert Sharpe and Sarah Woodson. He married Martha who
was born 1729; died June 1767 in Chesterfield, Virginia.

William died before his father's will was recorded. It was mentioned that William was a
blacksmith when he sold land on Four Mile Creek to John Pleasants. Henrico County later
became Chesterfield County. He owned land in Dale Parish. Described as William Sharpe of
Dale Parish when he sold land to Thomas Tanner.

http://books.google.com/books?1d=XZw2QnVvtOEC&pg=PA1&lpg=PA1&dq=%22William+S
harp%22+1686&source=bl&ots=02EuSSoWzf&sig=NJwgprbJHIbkqSSBCQdf1UnUkMO0&hl=
en&ei=swo6iTcvTLMnegQfikcjaBQ&sa=X&oi=book result&ct=result&resnum=2&sqi=2&ved=
0CCAQ6AEwWAQ#v=onepage&q=2%22William%20Sharp%22%201686&f=false

Children of William Sharp and Martha are:
1. Nancy Sharp
Robert Sharp
Richard Sharp, born 1730 in Chesterfield Cumberland Buckingham, Virginia; died 1823.
William Sharp, born 1730 in Henrico, Virginia; died 1805 in Louisa, Virginia, ..
Isaac Sharp, born 1751. Ursula Sharp, born 1751.
Julius Sharp, born 1754 in Henrico, Virginia; died 1790 in Rockbridge, Virginia;
married Mary Ann Kelley 1774 in Henrico, Virginia.
7. Ursula Sharp, born 1751

Sk

George Penn and Ann Fleming

George Penn, born 1690 in King Queen, Virginia; died September 1749 in Caroline, Virginia.
He was the son of John Penn and Lucy Granville. He married Ann Fleming 1734 in Caroline,
Virginia. Ann Fleming, born 1706 in Jamestown, James, Virginia; died 1794 in Amherst,
Virginia. She was the daughter of Tarleton Fleming and Mary Berkeley.

George Penn’s and Ann Fleming’s nephew John Penn 1741 was one of the signers of the
Declaration of Independence. John was the son of Moses Penn 1712, George’s brother and son
of John Penn and Lucy Granville. George was also married to Ann Madison. Children:

1. Frances Penn born January 9, 1735 in Drysdale Parish, Caroline, Virginia — died January
12, 1812 in Poplar Grove, Patrick, Virginia - married Drury Tucker — also married
Ambrose Lee brother of Sarah Lee below.

2. George Penn born December 12, 1737 in Caroline County, Virginia — died February 5,



1790 in Amherst County, Virginia — married Sarah Lee.

3. Philip Penn born January 27, 1738-1739 in Spotsylvania, Virginia — died 1761 in
Spotsylvania, Virginia — married Martha Crutcher — also Martha Rollins Holladay — same
birthdays.

4. Gabriel Penn born July 17, 1741 in Caroline County, Virginia — died 1798 in Ambherst,
Virginia — married Sarah Callaway.

5. Abraham Penn born December 27, 1743 in Caroline County, Virginia — died June 26,
1801 in Amherst County, Virginia — married Ruth Stovall.

6. Lt. Col. William Penn born April 7, 1745 in Drysdale Parish, Caroline, Virginia — died
June 17, 1777 in Amherst County, Virginia — married Martha Smith.

7. Moses Penn born January 13, 1747-1748 Drysdale Parish, Caroline, Virginia; died
October 10, 1774 in Norfolk, Virginia — cousin of John Penn 1741 — grandson of John
Penn 1650 — nephew of Moses Penn 1712.

John Penn was born on Mary 17, 1741 in Caroline County, Virginia. He was a "transplanted"
patriot, as he would build his political and legal career in North Carolina. He was the only child
of Moses Penn a moderately successful plantation owner and his (ex-wife at the time), Catherine
Taylor. Penn received little formal education, although his parents could well afford to pay the
expense of his tuition. At the age of eighteen, upon the death of his father, he had only been
instructed for a few years at a country school and was largely self-educated. At that time, he was
urged to study law by his mentor, Edmund Pendleton. Pendleton maintained a vast law library,
which he put at Penn's disposal. Penn studied hungrily and remarkably passed the bar
examination at Virginia at the age of twenty-one.

Penn was, however, unable to forge a rewarding practice in Virginia so he moved with his wife,
Susannah Lyme, and their three children to Williamsboro, North Carolina. There, he displayed
great ability and eloquence, and his practice flourished, as did his interest in politics. He soon
became a leader in his community. He was elected to the provincial legislature in 1775 and to the
Second Continental congress, taking his seat on October 12, filling a vacancy. It was said that
Penn, though very talkative in private, rarely spoke in congress. However, he was very diligent
in public business and voted consistently for independence.

After signing the Declaration, John Penn returned home and was chosen at once to occupy an
important position on the North Carolina board of war. His major task was to keep the militia
well supplied. His dedicated efforts in fact helped the Americans force Lord Cornwallis into
retreat before the end of 1780. In March of 1784, he was appointed receiver of taxes for North
Carolina, but he resigned that office the following April. His reason for doing so was the fact that
the state, while eagerly maintaining the cause of independence by resolutions and declaration,
refused to furnish the means by which it could be secured.

John Penn afterward resumed his life as a private citizen due to the state of his health, and
continued to practice law. He died on September 14, 1788 at the age of forty-eight.

http://home.comcast.net/~homerbjames/GSJ/GSJ Penn.htm

Notes for Ann Fleming:



http://wc.rootsweb.ancestry.com/cgi-bin/igm.cgi?op=GET&db=3257731&id=1155402

http://trees.ancestry.com/tree/13981872/person/83233337

The children of Gabriel Penn and Jane and James E. Penn and Catherine, namely Clark Penn and
Barbara Ann Penn, married each other (first cousins) and had a son, Gabriel James Penn. The
third son of Abraham Penn, above, Thomas Penn, and his wife, Frances M. Leath, had a son,
Andrew Jackson Penn, who married Martha A. Kennerly. Their daughter, Susan Elizabeth Penn,
married the above mentioned Gabriel James Penn. From the marriage of Gabriel James Penn and
Susan Elizabeth Penn, there was a son, Walter Clark Penn. Quite an intertwined family to say
the least!

Generation 5

Julius Sharp, born 1754 in Henrico, Virginia; died 1790 in Rockbridge, Virginia. He was the
son of William Sharp and Martha. He married Mary Ann Kelley 1774 in Henrico, Virginia.
Mary Ann Kelley, born 1754 in Henrico, Virginia; died after 1785 in Henrico, Virginia.

On April 5, 1783 in Cumberland County, Virginia an order by the officer of the poor requires
Mary Sharp to put her son, Julius, into an apprentice position. This suggests the boy is an orphan
with no father. He was living with his stepmother and sister Elizibeth and brother Isaac. He
appears on a petition next to George Kelley.

There was only one Julius Sharp enumerated on all of the 1787 tax lists of Virginia. He was in
Henrico Count. He would seem to be the only Julius Sharp to be considered as the father of the
young Rockbridge County, Virginia, Sharps. All 5 columns of the tax list were blank for Julius,
showing that he owned no personal property and that he had no sons between the ages of 16 and
20. This would indicate that Julius was either an old man or that if he had sons, they were born
after 1771. The latter is the case.

Julius Sharp served as a Private in Captain William Mosby's Co., 5th Virginia Regiment of Foot,
commanded by Lt. Col. Josiah Parker. On a Muster Roll from August 1776 to May 31, 1777.
Discharged January 1777.

Children of Julius Sharp and Mary Kelley are:
1. Susan Sharp, born in Virginia; died in Ohio.

2. William Sharp, born 1775 in Virginia; died in Indiana.

3. Isaac Sharp, born 1780 in Henrico, Virginia; died 1814 in Highland, Ohio.

4. Julius Sharp, born September 2, 1782 in Virginia; died July 23, 1846 in Rush, Indiana.

5. Robert Sharp, born July 3, 1784 in Rockbridge, Virginia; died August 12, 1841 in
Shelby, Ohio.

6. Lucy Sharp, born 1785 in Henrico, Virginia; died 1890 in Helt, Vermillion, Indiana.

7. Henry Sharp, born August 9, 1787 in Virginia; died October 5, 1856 in Liberty,

Jefferson, lowa; married Esther McCormick October 1, 1805 in Rockbridge, Virginia, .
8. Elizabeth Sharp, born November 4, 1789 in Virginia; died May 21, 1889 in Fairfield,
Highland, Ohio.



Drury Tucker and Frances Penn

Drury Tucker, born September 24, 1719 in Prince George, Virginia; died September 21, 1801
in Ambherst, Virginia. He was the son of John Tucker and Catherine Drury. He married
Frances Penn 06 April 1768 in Ambherst, Virginia. Frances Penn, born 09 January 1735 in
Drysdale Parish, Caroline, Virginia; died January 1812 in Poplar Grove, Patrick, Virginia. She
was the daughter of George Penn and Ann Fleming.

Notes for Drury Tucker:
Drury Tucker is the father of Zachariah Tucker born June 11, 1775 in Amherst County, Virginia.
Drury Tucker was born September 24, 1719 in Bristol Parish, Prince George County, Virginia
and died before September 21, 1801 in Amherst County, Virginia. He married (1) Susannah
Douglas about 1740 in Virginia. She was born about 1720 in Goochland County, Virginia and
died before 1767. He then married Frances Penn (called Frankey in Drury’s Will) April 06, 1767
in Amherst County, Virginia. She was born January 9, 1734/35 in Drysdale Parish, Caroline
County, Virginia, and died 1811 in Patrick County, Virginia. She later married Ambrose Lee.
Drury and Frances had five children:

1. Robert Tucker born 15 September, 1771 in Amherst, Virginia — died September 15, 1792 —
married Phebe Ballinger.

2. Isaac Tucker born 1772 in Amherst, Virginia — died 1850 in Taylor, Kentucky — married
Elizabeth Major.

3. Littleberry Tucker born 1772 in Virginia — died January 15, 1812 — married E J Christian.
4. Zachariah Tucker born June 11, 1775 in E J Christian — died July 11, 1844 — married Mary
Polly Craig

5. Pleasant Tucker born July 4, 1776 in Powhatan, Virginia — died April 22, 1854 in
Brooksville, Noxubee, Mississippi — married Sarah Craig

Mary Polly and Sarah Craig are sisters. Drury and Susannah Douglas had six children, Mary,
William, Daniel, Martha, Matthew, and Millie.

Will of Drury Tucker, Will Book 4, page 27, Amherst County, Virginia. Land owner and
slaveholder. In his will, he left 4 slaves to his children. Christening: October 24, 1720, Bristol
Parish, Prince George County, Virginia. Will 1: February 06, 1798, Written

Will 2: September 21, 1801, Proven.

Last Will and Testament of Drury Tucker

In the name of God Amen I Drury Tucker being in an State but of sound mine &
memory & calling to mind the uncertainty of human life do make and ordain this my last will &
Testament hereby revoking all former Wills by me made in manner & form following Viz. Item.
It is my will & desire that all my Just debts be Paid. Item. I do give to my Son Isaac Tucker one
Negro boy named F and one feather Bed & furniture to him and his heirs forever.
Item. I do give to my son Littleberry Tucker one Negro girl named Polley & one feather Bed &
furniture to him & his heirs forever. Item. I do give to my son Zachariah Tucker one




Negroe boy named & one feather Bed & furniture to him & his heirs forever.
Item. I do give to my son Pleasant Tucker one Negro boy named Davy & one feather Bed with
reasonable furniture to him & his heirs forever. Item. I do lend my Beloved wife Frankey Tucker
one third part of the Remainder of my Estate during her natural Life which is in lew of her
Dower and it is my wish & desire that she shall receive the same in the same manner as though
done pursuant to a decree of Court where the Law provides for Dower & at her
decease to be equally divided as hereinafter mentioned. Item. It is my will & desire that the
remainder of my Estate both real & personal be Equally Divided between my Eleven Children:
Mary Douglus, William Tucker, Daniel Tucker, Martha Rucker, Matthew Tucker, Milley
Harrison, Robert Tucker, Isaac Tucker, Littleberry Tucker, Zachariah Tucker & Pleasant Tucker
all to them & their heirs forever. Item. It is my Will & desire that the one third part herein lent to
my loving Wife during her natural Life shall at her decease be equally divided between my
Eleven Children as aforementioned. Lastly I do hereby appoint my Trusted friends Daniel
Tucker & Littleberry Tucker, my Executors to this my last will. In testimony whereof I have
hereunto set my hand & Seal this twenty sixth day of February One thousand Seven hundred &
ninety Eight. Signed by Drury Tucker (by his mark) and witnessed by George Dillard, Wm. Penn
of  ,Henry Cain __, Charles Burras and .

At a Court held for Amherst County the 21 Day of Sept. 1801. This Will was proven by the oaths
of George Dillard, William Penn _ Henry Cain witnesses thereto and ordered to be recorded.
And at a Court held for the said County the 19 day of October 1801, Daniel Tucker one of the
Executors named in said Will personally appeared in Court and qualified according to Law &
gave Bond with John Penn & Ambrose Rucker as his securities in the penalty of twenty thousand
Dollars Current money conditioned as the Law directs _ is granted him for obtaining a
probat thereof in due form.

http://wc.rootsweb.ancestry.com/cgi-bin/igm.cgi?op=GET&db=:2718937&i1d=125959

LETTER

Ambherst 6th Jany. 1779.

Dear Father, The purport of this is to remove every suspicion in you founded on false Reports
propagated by dis_ g g person, though not Counten__ed by me (Viz) That I meant to Demand
of you a part of your Estate as a promise of Marriage Contract. I do hereby declare and Assure
you that whatever promisses or declarations you may have made in my favour I now declare
them Void, as I never meant to Claim anything by Virtue of any promise made heretofore 1
mand to claim nothing in future from you but what as a Father you may thing proper to bestow
me, and that in such manner as you may think best. I am Dear Father your Affectionate Son,
Wm. Tucker. Witnessed by Gabriel Penn and Aaron Campbell (by his mark).

Addressed to Mr. Drury Tucker, Ambherst. At a Court held for Amherst County the fifth Day of
July 1790 On the Motion of Drury Tucker this Instrument of Writing being proved by Gabriel
Penn a Witness thereto is admitted to Record. William Tucker is a son by Susannah Douglas.

http://www.vagenweb.net/dinwiddie/tucker/tucker-idx.htm

Deed Book F, page 497, Amherst County, Virginia



INSOLVENTS

List of Insolvents and Nonresidents returned by Lewis Green, Deputy Collector for Henry
Walker, late Sheriff of Mecklenburg County for the Year 1787 . . . Drury Tucker 1 horse,
Insolvent . . . At a Court held for Mecklenburg County the 14th day of July 1788. This List of
Insolvents and nonresidents was returned into Court by Lewis Green one of the undersheriffs of
this county, sworn to by the said Lewis & Ordered to be certified.

http://members.aol.com/julial1957/tucker.html
this website gives a slightly different ancestry for Drury Tucker, and may well be more accurate.

http://www.rootsweb.com/~vadinwid/tucker/tucker-idx.htm

Notes for Frances Penn:
http://wc.rootsweb.ancestry.com/cgi-bin/igm.cgi?op=GET&db=grantpinnix&id=I1070504

After the death of her second husband, Frances made her home with her brother Abraham Penn
at "Poplar Grove" in Patrick CountyVirginia where she died and is buried.

In 1804, "advanced in years" and widowed, Frances Penn Lee Tucker signed all her lands to her
son-in-law, Major Richard Harrison for him to pay her debts, handle her affairs, and support her
for the balance of her life. This Richard Harrison had married Susannah Lee, dau of Ambrose
and Frances.

From Abstracts of Wills Inventories & Accounts: Patrick Co.-Adams, Lela C. 1973 Gen 975.51
P31Ad: p.110 Date: 30 Sept 1808 Will of Frances Tucker Legatees: My estate to be divided
between my first six children,to wit: George Lee, Richard Lee, Elizabeth Crutcher, Susannah
Harrison, Jane TINSLEY and Nancy Tucker. My son Robert Tucker is to be paid out of the
estate of his father. Executor: My nephew George Penn and son-in-law Richard HARRISON.
Witness: BRETT Stovall, Thomas Penn & Hamon Critz Returned: JanCt 1812

Wit: appear to be assoc. to Abraham Penn.

Brett Stovall- A son of Geo. Stovall & Mary Pleasant, m Nancy HUGHES

Thomas Penn 1781-1858 son of Abrm.

Hamon Critz - could be Hamon's son

Maj. Richard HARRISON d.1820 husband of Susannah Lee, daughter of Frances George Penn -
1768-1828 m. Sally GORDON, son of Abraham (believed to be the George Penn that forged

George Penn's 1705-1749 signature in Ann Fleming's will in 1794, and a number of other
documents as well)



Children of Drury Tucker and Frances Penn are:

1. Robert Tucker, born September 15, 1771 in Amherst, Virginia; died 15 September 1792;
married Phebe Ballinger August 26, 1791; born 14 July 1774 in Virginia; died March 10,
1823 in Virginia.

2. Isaac Tucker, born 1772 in Amherst, Virginia; died 1850 in Taylor, Kentucky; married
Elizabeth Major; born 1775 in Greensville County, Virginia.

3. Littleberry Tucker, born 1772 in Virginia; died 15 January 1812 in Ambherst, Virginia;
married E J Christian.

4. Zachariah Tucker, born 11 June 1775 in Amherst County, Virginia; died 11 July 1844 in
Chamois, Osage, Missouri; married Mary Polly Craig April 18, 1801 in Lincoln Co,
Kentucky.

5. Pleasant Tucker, born July 4, 1776 in Powhatan, Virginia; died April 22, 1854 in
Brooksville, Noxubee, Mississippi; married Sarah Craig August 12, 1802 in Amherst,
Virginia; born 1785; died May 7, 1847 in Lincoln County, Kentucky.

Notes for Pleasant Tucker:
Know all men by these presents that I Pleasant Tucker of the County of Amherst & state of
Virginia, do hereby make, ordain, constitute & appoint Robert H. Coleman of the County of
Ambherst & state of Virginia & Littleberry & Zachariah Tucker both of the County of Lincoln, &
State of Kentucky my lawful agents & Attornies in fact, hereby given and vesting them & each
of them with full and complett powers, each of them jointly and severally, to do & transact, all
manner and kinds of business for me and in my name, in as full & ample a manner as if the same
were done & transacted by me, or in my proper person touching any claims or interests, more
particularly I may have or be entitled to the lands tenements or hereditaments, either by discent
or purchase, or otherwise in the Commonwealth of Kentucky, all which acts & doings in manner
& form aforesaid of whatsoever nature of them or either of them the said Robert H. Coleman of
the County & state aforesaid & Littleberry Tucker & Zachariah each of them of the County &
state aforesaid I the said Pleasant Tucker do hereby in all things bind myself my heirs, executors
administrators & assigns, strickly & religiously to observe and obey in their lawful meaning,
extent & latitude, and for which said purpose & to the end that these premises may be fully &
completely done & executed, I do by these presents renounce, disannul, to all intents and
purposes, revoke all former powers, or priviliges, by one made given or ordained in any manner
or way whatsoever In testimony whereof I have to these present signed my name and affixed my
seal this 17th day of September in the year one thousand eight hundred and four. Signed by
Pleasant Tucker.

At a Court held for Amherst County the 17th day of September 1804 This letter of Attorney was
acknowledged in open Court by Pleasant Tucker a party thereto and ordered to be recorded.

Deed Book K, page 54, Amherst County, Virginia

Generation 6



Henry Sharp and Esther McCormick

Henry Sharp was born August 9, 1787 in Virginia; died October 5, 1856 in Liberty, Jefferson,
Iowa. He was the son of Julius Sharp and Mary Ann Kelley. He married Esther McCormick
October 1, 1805 in Rockbridge, Virginia, .. Esther McCormick, born 1786 in Virginia; died
October 1861 in Promise City, Wayne, lowa. She was the daughter of Samuel McCormick.

Henry served in Key's Regt. Ohio Militia War of 1812. His wife was Esther McCormick born in
Virginia, died in 1861, burial at Promise City, Wayne County, lowa. Burial: Bethel Cemetery,
Birmingham, Van Buren County, lowa. They had 10 children. At least 2 sons (and the widow
and sons of another) moved to lowa with him in mid 1850. His father and mother were Julius
Sharp and Mary Ann Kelly. Children of Henry Sharp and Esther McCormick are:

1. Joseph Tate Sharp, born March 5, 1826 in Ohio; married Ellen Gordon February 25,
1846 in Adams, Ohio.

2. William Sharp, born August 13, 1816 in Ohio; died April 6, 1873 in Promise City,
Wayne, lowa.

Zachariah Tucker and Mary Polly Craig

Zachariah Tucker, born June 11, 1775 in Amherst County, Virginia; died July 11, 1844 in
Chamois, Osage, Missouri. He was the son of Drury Tucker and Frances Penn. He married
Mary Polly Craig April 18, 1801 in Lincoln Co, Kentucky. Mary Polly Craig, born June 20,
1783 in Kentucky; died November 10, 1851 in Chamois, Osage, Missouri (buried). She was the
daughter of Samuel Craig and Mary Masterson.

Zachariah Tucker was born June 11, 1775 in Amherst County, Virginia to Drury Tucker and his
wife. Mary Craig was born June 20, 1785 to Samuel Craig and Mary Masterson. These dates
come from gravestones in the family cemetery in Chamois, Missouri. They were married April
18, 1801 in Lincoln County, Kentucky. Mary was living with her daughter Martha Hull in the
1850 census. Martha Tucker Hull married John Hull’s brother Laban Hull. Zachariah died July
11, 1844 and Mary died November 10, 1851. They are both buried in the family cemetery.
These dates come from gravestones in the family cemetery in Chamois, Missouri. This cemetery
is on farmland and very difficult to find. Tucker Documents
http://www.vagenweb.net/dinwiddie/tucker/tucker-idx.htm

Children of Zachariah Tucker and Mary Craig are:

1. Mary Ann Branham Tucker, born November 3, 1810 in Kentucky; died after 1880 in
Osage, Missouri; married Henry Jacob Hull; born November 14, 1801 in Crabapple
Bottom, Pendleton, Virginia; died January 22, 1849 in Hull Farm, Chamois, Osage,
Missouri.

2. Sarah Elizabeth Tucker Burnett, born 1814 in Kentucky; died 1883 in Chamois,
Osage, Missouri (buried); married (1) John Harness Hull November 3, 1836 in
Calloway Co, Missouri; married (2) Creed Burnett August 25, 1853 in Osage Co,
Missouri.

3. Margaret C. Tucker, born 1821 in Lincoln, Kentucky maybe December 18, 1821 (from



stone); died 1868 in Chamois, Osage, Missouri (buried).

4. Martha G. Tucker, born 1822 in Kentucky; died 1868; married Laban Hull 1852 in Osage
County, Missouri; born February 16, 1810; died April 11, 1858 in Chamois, Osage,
Missouri.

Notes for Laban Hull:

On grave stone

Our Father and Mother are gone.
They lay beneath the sod.

Dear Parents, tho' we miss you much
we know you rest with God

5. Amanda Lee Duncan Tucker, born 1804 in Lincoln, Kentucky; died 1860; married (1)
Samuel Duncan; born 1808; married (2) Phillip Samuel Hocker 21 January 1837.

Generation 7
Joseph Tate Sharp and Ellen Gordon

Joseph Tate Sharp, born March 5, 1826 in Ohio, .. He was the son of Henry Sharp and Esther
McCormick. He married Ellen Gordon February 25, 1846 in Adams, Ohio. Ellen Gordon, born
May 21, 1822 in Adams, County, Ohio; died October 4, 1850 in Peoria, Peoria, Illinois. She was
the daughter of William Gordon and Sarah Sally McGowan.
http://wc.rootsweb.ancestry.com/cgi-bin/igm.cgi?op=GET&db=:3172219&i1d=16058

Joseph was living in his father's household in 1850 along with wife and sons John A. and Henry
P. From Census of South Fork, Wayne County, Indiana.

Children of Joseph Sharp and Ellen Gordon are:

1. Henry Preston Sharp, born January 5, 1848 in Ohio; died May 24 1898 in Promise
City, Wayne, lowa; married Pardine Holliday.

2. William A Sharp, born October 4, 1850; died 1928 in Wayne, lowa.

John A Sharp, born December 26, 1846.

4. Nancy P Sharp, born 1850.

(98]

John Harness Hull and Sarah Elizabeth Tucker

John Harness Hull was born in 1804 in Pendleton County, Virginia to Henry Hull and Hannah
Harness Hull. Sarah Elizabeth Tucker was born in 1814 in Kentucky to Zacharaih Tucker and
Mary Craig Tucker. John and Sarah were married November 3, 1836 in Calloway County,
Missouri. John died March 17, 1852 in Chamois, Osage County, Missouri. John and Sarah are
buried near Chamois, Osage County, Missouri. See below.

John and Sarah had nine children:

1. Jesse Hull — born 1837 — Missouri
2. William Hull — born about 1839 — Missouri



3. Sarah Jane Hull — born 1841 — Osage County, Missouri — died August 13, 1888 - Colton,
San Bernadino, California — married Robert Mitchell Berry.

4. Frances Ann Hull — born October 26, 1844 — Osage County, Missouri and died

February 4, 1894 on the trail near Hennessey Oklahoma married Hugh Patrick Jordan

John Hull I — born 1845 — Missouri

Martha Pearl Hull — born February 18, 1849 — Chamois, Osage County, Missouri

Catherine Hull

George Hull — born March 2, 1851 — died June 24 1862 — Chamois, Osage, Missouri.

o NN

See also 1850 Federal Census.

http://www.us-census.org/pub-ftp/mo/osage/1850/pg0453b.txt

John Harness Hull Marker

This stone is in the Hull Cemetery East in Benton Township, Osage County, Missouri,
T45N,R7W,Section8. It is located in a grove of locust trees atop a bluff overlooking the Missouri
River bottoms. Most of the stones are down and difficult to find in the vinca ground cover. The
graves are:

Row 1 Stone 1: Elizabeth Elliott 1837-1882
Stone 2: Octavia Elliott 1869-1873
Stone 3: John S. Elliott 1866-1873
Row 2 Stone 1 Margaret B. Tucker 1821-1865

Stone 2 John H Hull 1801-1852



Stone 3 Sarah E Burnett 1814-1884

Stone 4 Sally Stookey -1845
Stone 5 Zachariah Tucker 1775-1844
Stone 6 Mary Tucker 1783-1851
Row 3 Stone 1 Matthew J Ramsey  1841-1876
Stone 2
Stone 3 Frances P Hull 1818-1841
Stone 4 Laban Hull 1810-1858
Stone 5 Martha G Hull 1822-1887
Stone 6 Laban Hull no date

Mary Tucker was born as Polly Craig. Martha Hull was born as Martha Tucker. Sarah E. Burnett
is the widow of John H. Hull. She was the third wife of Creed Burnett who was buried beside her
but without a marker. Other Hulls were buried in Bailey’s Creek Cemetery. For GPS users the
Bailey’s Creek Cemetery is located at Latitude: 38.549N Longitude: -91.699W.

Generation 8
Henry Preston Sharp and Ellen Gordan

Henry Preston Sharp, born January 5, 1848 in Ohio; died May 24, 1898 in Promise City,
Wayne, lowa. He was the son of Joseph Tate Sharp and Ellen Gordon. He married Pardine
Holliday. Pardine Holliday, born 1849 in Illinois. She was the daughter of Ransom Holliday
and Mary Baker. Pardine’s sister Hannah Holiday married Henry Sharp’s cousin Samual M.
Sharp. There is lots of information about the Sharps at:

http://www.findagrave.com/cgi-

bin/fg.cgi?page=gsr&GSiman=1&GScid=95900& GSfn=&GSIn=Sharp

Child of Henry Sharp and Pardine Holliday is:

1. Mary Eleanor Sharp, born 12 January 1869 in Wayne County, lowa; died May 3, 1907
in Promise City, Wayne, lowa; married Henry Preston Sharp.

Hugh Patrick Jordan and Frances Ann Hull
Generation 9
William Henry Donald
William Henry Donald, born September 17, 1866 in Promise City, Wayne, lowa; died January
13, 1944 in Seymour, lowa. He was the son of Corporal William M. Donald and Elizabeth
Bevington. He married Mary Eleanor Sharp. Mary Eleanor Sharp, born January 12, 1869 in
Wayne County, lowa; died May 3, 1907 in Promise City, Wayne, lowa. She was the daughter of
Henry Preston Sharp and Pardine Holliday.

http://trees.ancestry.com/owt/person.aspx?pid=31935183



http://trees.ancestry.com/owt/person.aspx?pid=15541648

Children of William Donald and Mary Sharp are:

1.
2.

3.

4.

5.

6.
7.

Thomas Keith Donald

William Preston Donald, born April 6, 1889 in Wayne County, lowa; married Ossee
Wilson October 22, 1913; born October 2, 1887 in Seymour, Wayne County, lowa.
Doctor Ernest Donald, born March 23, 1890 in Seymore, lowa; died September 19,
1966 in Los Angeles, California; married Arma Hatten.

James Everett Donald, born July 14, 1891 in Wayne County, lowa; died January 1971 in
Corydon, Wayne, lowa; married Emma Wilson.

Bert Donald, born April 20, 1894 in Wayne County, lowa; died February 22, 1964;
married Hazel Neel; born 1898; died 1983.

Neil Brown Donald, born November 12, 1899.

Margaret Donald, married Ransom Alpheus Elmer Sharp.

His father William M. Donald William was born in 1825 and moved to Holmes County, Ohio by
1840. William served during the Civil War. He was a corporal in Company F, 38th Regiment of
the U.S. Infantry. He married Elizabeth Bevington, (1835 — 1909). The couple moved to Wayne

County, Iowa by 1900. William died there July 5, 1905 and Elizabeth also died there May 7,

1909.

Hiram Benjamin Hutchinson and Martha Matilda Jordan



